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From: Scearce, Lynn
To: sampsolj@leegov.com
Cc: jgorrie@covantaenergy.com; Satyal, Ajaya; Mulkey, Cindy; ceron.heather@epa.gov; Kathleen Forney;


oquendo.ana@epa.gov; Attalla, Yousry; Linero, Alvaro; Friday, Barbara; Scearce, Lynn
Subject: 0710119-010-AC/PSD-FL-151G, Lee County Resource Recovery Facility, Final Permit
Date: Friday, November 02, 2012 2:31:18 PM
Attachments: 0710119-010-AC Final Permit - Signed.pdf


Dear Mr. Sampson: 


Attached is the official Notice of Final Permit for the project referenced below. Click
on the link displayed below to access the permit project documents and reply back
verifying receipt of the document(s) provided in the link


Note:  We must receive verification that you are able to access the documents. Your immediate reply will preclude
subsequent e-mail transmissions to verify accessibility of the document(s).


Owner/Company Name: LEE COUNTY DEPT. OF SOLID WASTE MGT. 
Facility Name: LEE CO. SOLID WASTE RESOURCE REC. FAC. 
Project Number: 0710119-010-AC-PSD-FL-151G
Permit Status: FINAL 
Permit Activity: CONSTRUCTION 
Facility County: LEE


Click on the following link to access the permit project documents: 
http://ARM-
PERMIT2K.dep.state.fl.us/adh/prod/pdf_permit_zip_files/0710119.010.AC.F_pdf.zip


If you have any problems opening the documents or would like further information, please
contact the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Office of Permitting and
Compliance.


Lynn Scearce


Office of Permitting and Compliance (OPC)
Division of Air Resource Management – DEP
2600 Blair Stone Road, Mail Stop 5505
Phone:  850-717-9025


Did you know that the Department may not require you to submit a Title V fee for the 2012 calendar year?  To learn more, please
visit us online at the following web address:  www.title5feeholiday.com


Please take a few minutes to share your comments on the service you received from the department
by clicking on this link DEP Customer Survey.
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PERMITTEE 



Lee County Department of Solid Waste Management 
10500 Buckingham Road, Suite 200 
Fort Myers, Florida  33905 



Authorized Representative: 
Mr. Lindsay J. Sampson, Director 



Permit No. 0710119-010-AC/PSD-FL-151G 
Air Construction Permit Modification 
Lee County Resource Recovery Facility 
Remove Ammonia CEMS for Unit 3 
Lee County, Florida 



PROJECT 



This is the final air construction permit which modifies Permit No. 0710119-005-AC/PSD-FL-151D to remove 
the requirements to continuously monitor ammonia slip from municipal waste combustor Unit No. 3.  This facility 
is an existing municipal waste combustor plant categorized under Standard Industrial Classification No. 4953.  
This existing plant is located in Lee County at 10500 Buckingham Road, Fort Myers.  UTM Coordinates are:  
Zone 17, 424.21 km East and 2945.70 km North.  Latitude is 26° 37’ 54” North and Longitude is 81° 45’ 41” 
West.  



This final permit is organized into the following sections:  Section 1 (General Information) and Section 2 (Permit 
Modification).  



STATEMENT OF BASIS 



This air pollution construction permit is issued under the provisions of:  Chapter 403 of the Florida Statutes (F.S.) 
and Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296 and 62-297 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.).  
This project is subject to the general preconstruction review requirements in Rule 62-212.300, F.A.C. and is not 
subject to the preconstruction review requirements for major stationary sources in Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C. for the 
Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) of Air Quality.  A copy of this permit modification shall be filed 
with the referenced permit and shall become part of the permit. 



Upon issuance of this final permit, any party to this order has the right to seek judicial review of it under Section 
120.68 of the Florida Statutes by filing a notice of appeal under Rule 9.110 of the Florida Rules of Appellate 
Procedure with the clerk of the Department of Environmental Protection in the Office of General Counsel (Mail 
Station #35, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-3000) and by filing a copy of the 
notice of appeal accompanied by the applicable filing fees with the appropriate District Court of Appeal.  The 
notice must be filed within 30 days after this order is filed with the clerk of the Department. 



Executed in Tallahassee, Florida 
(Electronic Signature) 
 
 
 
 
 
 



JFK/yha











PERMIT MODIFICATION 



Lee County Department of Solid Waste Management Final Permit No. 0710119-010-AC/PSD-FL-151G 
Lee County Resource Recovery Facility Remove Ammonia CEMS for Unit 3 
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The undersigned duly designated deputy agency clerk hereby certifies that this Final Air Permit package 
(including the Final Determination and Final Permit Revision), or a link to these documents available 
electronically on a publicly accessible server, was sent by electronic mail with received receipt requested before 
the close of business on the date indicated below to the following persons. 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 



Mr. Lindsay J. Sampson, Director, Lee County DSWM:  sampsolj@leegov.com 
Mr. Jason M. Gorrie, P.E., Covanta:  jgorrie@covantaenergy.com 
Mr. A. J. Satyal, DEP SD:  ajaya.satyal@dep.state.fl.us 
Ms. Cindy Mulkey, DEP Siting Office:  cindy.mulkey@dep.state.fl.us 
Ms. Heather Ceron, U.S. EPA Region 4:  ceron.heather@epa.gov 
Ms. Katy R. Forney, U.S. EPA Region 4:  forney.kathleen@epa.gov 
Ms. Ana Oquendo-Vazquez, U.S. EPA Region 4:  oquendo.ana@epa.gov 
Ms. Barbara Friday, DEP OPC:  barbara.friday@dep.state.fl.us (for posting with U.S. EPA, Region 4) 
Ms. Lynn Scearce, DEP OPC:  lynn.scearce@dep.state.fl.us (for reading file) 



Clerk Stamp 



FILING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FILED, on this date, 
pursuant to Section 120.52(7), Florida Statutes, with the 
designated agency clerk, receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged. 
(Electronic Signature) 
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SECTION 1.  GENERAL INFORMATION 



Lee County Department of Solid Waste Management Final Permit No. 0710119-010-AC/PSD-FL-151G 
Lee County Resource Recovery Facility Remove Ammonia CEMS for Unit 3 



Page 3 of 4 



FACILITY DESCRIPTION 



This existing facility consists of:  three municipal solid waste combustors (Unit Nos. 1, 2 and 3) with auxiliary 
burners; lime storage and processing facilities; ash storage and processing facilities; a metals recovery system; 
cooling towers; and, ancillary support equipment.  The total capacity of the Lee County Resource Recovery 
Facility is 1,980 tons/day of municipal solid waste fuel with a nominal higher heating value of 5,000 Btu/lb.  The 
gross nominal electric generating capacity of the facility is 60 megawatts.  The facility is owned by Lee County 
and is currently operated by Covanta Lee, Inc.  Also located at the facility are miscellaneous unregulated/ 
insignificant emissions units and/or activities. 



FACILITY REGULATORY CLASSIFICATION 



• This facility is a major source of hazardous air pollutants (HAP). 



• This facility does not operate units subject to the acid rain provisions of the Clean Air Act (CAA). 



• The facility is a Title V major source of air pollution in accordance with Chapter 213, F.A.C. 



• The facility is a major stationary source in accordance with Rule 62-212.400 (PSD), F.A.C. 



PROPOSED PROJECT 



This permit modifies Permit No. 0710119-005-AC/PSD-FL-151D to remove the requirement to continuously 
monitor ammonia emissions from municipal waste combustor Unit No. 3 and replace it with annual stack testing.  
As part of the project, the Title V air operation permit is being concurrently revised by project No. 0710119-011-
AV concurrently to incorporate this change. 



 











SECTION 2.  PERMIT MODIFICATION 
 



Lee County Department of Solid Waste Management Final Permit No. 0710119-010-AC/PSD-FL-151G 
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The following permit conditions and emissions unit description are revised as indicated.  Strikethrough is used to 
denote the deletion of text.  Double-underlines are used to denote the addition of text.   



Permit Being Modified:  0710119-005-AC/PSD-FL-151D 



Affected Emissions Unit:  Municipal Waste Combustor Unit 3 (EU-006) 



Section III. Specific Conditions 



COMPLIANCE AND PERFORMANCE TESTING 



B.10.(5) The ammonia slip rate shall be initially established for a 12-month period at 50 ppmvd @ 7% O2 and 
based upon quarterly stack test results (Note: the applicant has represented that this will not cause a work-
place safety issue, an ash management issue or an odor issue).  Thereafter, tThe ammonia slip rate shall 
be established at 30 ppmvd @ 7% O2 based upon quarterly annual stack test results.  However, if the 
ammonia CEMS demonstrates that the quarterly ammonia slip average for the calendar quarter preceding 
the scheduled quarterly test is 15 ppmvd @ 7% O2 or less, then CEMS data shall substitute for the 
required quarterly tack test. 



B.11. Test Procedures



MONITORING OF OPERATIONS 



:  Compliance tests shall meet all applicable requirements (i.e., testing frequency, 
minimum compliance duration, etc.) of Chapter 62-297, F.A.C.  The Method 9 test shall be conducted 
during one run of the particulate matter test.  The particulate matter test shall be conducted under 
conditions representative of normal operations and at least one test run shall be conducted during a 
normal (soot blowing) cycle.  Initial performance tests for SO2 and NOX shall be conducted using CEMS 
in accordance with the methods and requirements of 40 CFR 60.58b(e)(4), (h)(3) and (i)(3) respectively.  
Simultaneous CEMS data for NOX shall be submitted with the quarterly annual ammonia stack test data 
and results (Method CTM-027 or equivalent for ammonia).  All test reports shall include the information 
required by 40 CFR 60.59b(f).  [Rules 62-4.070(3), 62-297.310 and 62-204.800(8), F.A.C.; 40 CFR 
60.38b, 40 CFR 60.58b and 40 CFR 60.59b] 



B.13. Continuous Monitoring:  Compliance with the emission limits for carbon monoxide (CO), nitrogen oxides 
(NOX) and sulfur dioxide (SO2) in specific condition B.8. of this permit shall be demonstrated by 
continuous emission monitoring systems (CEMS) operated in accordance with the requirements of 40 
CFR 60.58b.  Oxygen (O2) and opacity shall be monitored by continuous monitoring systems.  Monitors 
for sulfur dioxide and oxygen shall be located both upstream of the dry scrubber and downstream of the 
baghouse in order to calculate percentage removal efficiency.  A CEMS shall be installed for the purpose 
of measuring ammonia slip from this emissions unit (with a range of 100ppm), and used for informational 
purposes rather than continuous compliance (other than as allowed for in specific condition B.10).  For 
purposes of the RATA, this CEMS shall be compared to CTM-027.  All continuous monitoring systems 
shall be installed, calibrated, maintained and operated as required by 40 CFR 60.13 and shall conform to 
all applicable Performance Specifications in 40 CFR 60, Appendix B.  Quality assurance procedures shall 
conform to all applicable sections of 40 CFR 60, Appendix F.  Initial performance evaluations shall be 
completed within 180 days after initial startup of the unit.  Data on continuous monitor equipment 
specifications, manufacturer, type, calibration and maintenance needs, and proposed locations shall be 
provided to the DEP-SD for review at least 90 days prior to installation.  [Rules 62-4.070(3) and 62-
204.800(8), F.A.C.; 40 CFR 60.38 and 40 CFR 60.58b] 








			CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE





						2012-11-02T13:28:04-0400


			Jeffery F. Koerner








						2012-11-02T14:09:42-0400


			Lynn Scearce



















From: Microsoft Exchange
To: Mulkey, Cindy; Linero, Alvaro
Subject: Delivered: 0710119-010-AC/PSD-FL-151G, Lee County Resource Recovery Facility, Final Permit
Date: Friday, November 02, 2012 2:31:19 PM


Your message has been delivered to the following recipients:
HYPERLINK "mailto:Cindy.Mulkey@dep.state.fl.us"Mulkey, Cindy
HYPERLINK "mailto:Alvaro.Linero@dep.state.fl.us"Linero, Alvaro
Subject: 0710119-010-AC/PSD-FL-151G, Lee County Resource Recovery Facility, Final Permit 
  _____  
Sent by Microsoft Exchange Server 2007



mailto:/O=FLORIDADEP/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=MICROSOFTEXCHANGE329E71EC88AE4615BBC36AB6CE41109E
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From: Microsoft Exchange
To: Attalla, Yousry; Friday, Barbara; Scearce, Lynn; Satyal, Ajaya
Subject: Delivered: 0710119-010-AC/PSD-FL-151G, Lee County Resource Recovery Facility, Final Permit
Date: Friday, November 02, 2012 2:31:19 PM


Your message has been delivered to the following recipients:
HYPERLINK "mailto:Yousry.Attalla@dep.state.fl.us"Attalla, Yousry
HYPERLINK "mailto:Barbara.Friday@dep.state.fl.us"Friday, Barbara
HYPERLINK "mailto:Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us"Scearce, Lynn
HYPERLINK "mailto:Ajaya.Satyal@dep.state.fl.us"Satyal, Ajaya
Subject: 0710119-010-AC/PSD-FL-151G, Lee County Resource Recovery Facility, Final Permit 
  _____  
Sent by Microsoft Exchange Server 2007
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From: Sampson, Lindsey
To: Scearce, Lynn
Subject: RE: 0710119-010-AC/PSD-FL-151G, Lee County Resource Recovery Facility, Final Permit
Date: Tuesday, November 20, 2012 2:26:28 PM


Lynn,


Yes, I received the docs.  Sorry for the late response.


 


Lindsey J. Sampson
Lee County Solid Waste Division
sampsolj@leegov.com
Ph  239-533-8000
Fax 239-461-5871


 


From: Scearce, Lynn [mailto:Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us] 
Sent: Tuesday, November 20, 2012 2:12 PM
To: Sampson, Lindsey; jgorrie@covantaenergy.com
Subject: RE: 0710119-010-AC/PSD-FL-151G, Lee County Resource Recovery Facility, Final Permit


 


Were you able to view the documents?  Thanks.


From: Scearce, Lynn 
Sent: Friday, November 02, 2012 2:31 PM
To: sampsolj@leegov.com
Cc: jgorrie@covantaenergy.com; Satyal, Ajaya; Mulkey, Cindy; ceron.heather@epa.gov; Kathleen
Forney; oquendo.ana@epa.gov; Attalla, Yousry; Linero, Alvaro; Friday, Barbara; Scearce, Lynn
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



mailto:LSampson@leegov.com

mailto:Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us

mailto:sampsolj@leegov.com





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


Please note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written communications to or from County Employees and officials
regarding County business are public records available to the public and media upon request. Your email communication may be
subject to public disclosure.


Under Florida law, email addresses are public records. If you do not want your email address released in response to a public
records request, do not send electronic mail to this entity. Instead, contact this office by phone or in writing.
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From: Scearce, Lynn
To: Scearce, Lynn
Subject: Read: 0710119-010-AC/PSD-FL-151G, Lee County Resource Recovery Facility, Final Permit
Date: Friday, November 02, 2012 2:43:10 PM


Your message was read on Friday, November 02, 2012 2:42:33 PM (GMT-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).
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From: Microsoft Exchange
To: sampsolj@leegov.com
Subject: Relayed: 0710119-010-AC/PSD-FL-151G, Lee County Resource Recovery Facility, Final Permit
Date: Friday, November 02, 2012 2:31:20 PM


Delivery to these recipients or distribution lists is complete, but delivery notification was not sent by the destination:
HYPERLINK "mailto:sampsolj@leegov.com"sampsolj@leegov.com
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
To: jgorrie@covantaenergy.com
Subject: Relayed: 0710119-010-AC/PSD-FL-151G, Lee County Resource Recovery Facility, Final Permit
Date: Friday, November 02, 2012 2:31:21 PM


Delivery to these recipients or distribution lists is complete, but delivery notification was not sent by the destination:
HYPERLINK "mailto:jgorrie@covantaenergy.com"jgorrie@covantaenergy.com
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
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